UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

OFFICE OF SPECIAL EDUCATION AND REHABILITATIVE SERVICES

DEC 3 1997

M. Richard Bachnman

Princi pal

M dwest Gty H gh Schoo

213 Elm Drive

M dwest G ty, Cklahoma 73110-4892

Dear M. Bachman:

Your letter to President dinton, dated August 29, 1997, has been
referred to the U S. Departnent of Education's Ofice of Special
Education Programs (OSEP) for review. The followi ng sets forth
your inquiry and our response.

You requested clarification of a provision relating to discipline
under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Anendnents
of 1997, Public Law 105-17 (IDEA '97).

Let ne start by saying that it has always been the position of
this Administration that our schools must be safe, disciplined,
and drug-free. |IDEA '97 expands the authority of school
officials to protect the safety of all children, while ensuring.
that essential rights and protections are available to students
with disabilities.

It appears fromyour letter that you understand this Departnent's
position to be that a disabled student can never be suspended for
nore than 45 days for a violent act of misconduct. This is not
the case. As expl ai ned bel ow, where a student's nisconduct is
unrelated to the student's disability, the student may be
suspended for nore than 45 days if that is the disciplinary
action taken for non-di sabl ed students.

First, I would note that section 613(j) of IDEA '97, referenced
in your letter, does not address disciplinary options avail abl e
to school personnel. Rather, that section, a copy of which is
encl osed for your information, addresses the transfer of school
records of disabled children

Section 615(k) of |IDEA '97 addresses the options available to
school authorities in disciplining disabled students and sets
forth procedures that nust be foll owed in taking disciplinary
actions. A copy of that section also is enclosed for your
information. Specifically, 8 615(k)(1)(A)(ii) states that if a
di sabl ed student brings a weapon to, or know ngly possesses or
uses illegal drugs at, school or a school function, schoo
personnel may order a change in the placenent of the child to an
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appropriate interimalternative educational setting for the sane
anount of tine that a child without a disability would be subject
to discipline, but for not nore than 45 days. In addition, under
615(k)(2), schools may go to a hearing officer for placenent of
a di sabled student in an alternative educational setting for up
to 45 days if the student is substantially likely to injure

hi nsel f or others. Previously, only a court had that authority.
Moreover, if, following a review of the child' s disability and

t he behavi or which caused the disciplinary action, it is

determ ned that the behavior of the child was not a

mani festation of the child s disability, the disciplinary
procedures applicable to children without disabilities may be
applied to the child. This neans that if non-disabled children
are suspended or expelled for a particular violation of school
rules, the child with disabilities may al so be suspended or
expel l ed. Note, however, that the statute requires that a free
appropriate public education (FAPE) nust continue to be provided
to all disabled students, including those students who have been
suspended or expelled fromschool. IDEA '97, 8 615(k)(5)(A).

For your information, | am enclosing an OSEP nenorandum t hat
provides initial guidance on the requirenents of IDEA '97 as they
relate to the discipline of children with disabilities. | also

am encl osing the Departnment's notice of proposed rul emaki ng on
| DEA ' 97, which was published on Cctober 22, 1997.

We hope that you find the above expl anati on and the encl osed

i nformati on hel pful in clarifying sonme of the discipline

provi sions of the IDEA '97. If you would like further

i nformation, you may wi sh to contact the persons whose nanmes and
t el ephone nunbers appear on OSEP Menorandum 97-7, or Ms. Mara
Tayl or, your State contact in the Mnitoring and State

| mprovenent Pl anning Division, at (202) 205-9181

Si ncerely,
}-MM"._/‘L

Thomas Hehir
Director
O fice of Special Education
Pr ogr ans
Encl osures

cc: Darla Giffin
Okl ahoma Departnment of Education
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